

Grayscale Guide



MLA 150

Disclaimer

This document is only valid for the system configuration stated on this page. If your system has a different configuration, contact Heidelberg Instruments Mikrotechnik GmbH for a document matching your configuration.

Every effort has been made to ensure that the data given in this document is accurate. The contents in this document are subject to change without notice. Heidelberg Instruments Mikrotechnik GmbH makes no warranty or representation, either expressed or implied with respect to this document. In no event will Heidelberg Instruments be liable for any direct, indirect, special, incidental, or consequential damages resulting from any defects in this documentation.

This document is copyrighted with all rights reserved. Under the copyright laws, this document may not be copied in whole or in part or reproduced in any other media without the express written permission of Heidelberg Instruments Mikrotechnik GmbH. Permitted copies must carry the same proprietary and copyright notices as were affixed to the original. This exception does not allow copies to be made for others, whether or not sold, but all the material purchased may be sold, given, or loaned to another person. Under the law, copying includes translation into another language.

Doc. No.: DWL-HI-**01416-UG11** Revision: 1 (January 2022) Software Version: APP **1.2**

Copyright © 2021 by Heidelberg Instruments

INSTRUMENTS

Table of contents

1	Intro	oduction	1
	1.1	About this guide	2
	1.2	Related documentation	2
	1.3	Design rules	4
	1.4	General structure rules	5
	1.5	Structure rules for grayscale design drawing	7
		1.5.1 DXF/Grayscale DXF design rules	7
		1.5.2 Bitmap rules	8
2	Bas	sics	9
	2.1	Standard lithography vs. grayscale lithography	9
	2.2	Applications for grayscale lithography	
	2.3	The 3D-writing concept	
	2.4	Advice on design creation	
3	Cor	nversion	
	3.1	Setting up gray value table files in advance	15
	3.2	Start the software	
	3.3	DXF Grayscale conversion	17

List of illustrations

Fig. 1: Grayscale design using all 255 layers	4
Fig. 2: Combination of structures	6
Fig. 3: Polygon/polyline drawing rules	7
Fig. 4: Standard vs. grayscale lithography	9
Fig. 5: Diffractive optic element	10
Fig. 6: Blazed grating	10
Fig. 7: Fresnel lens	11
Fig. 8: Microlens array	11
Fig. 9: Retro-reflector design (courtesy of karmic.ch); GS application in	
MEMS/MOEMS	11
Fig. 10: Main 3D writing strategy (combination of SLM, focusing optics, and an x/y-	
stage)	12
Fig. 11: Open and closed polylines	13
Fig. 12: Drawing subtracted regions with multiple structures	14
Fig. 13: Values assigned to layers in a text editor	15
Fig. 14: Converting the design	16
Fig. 15: Opening the conversion software	16
Fig. 16: Conversion GUI	17
Fig. 17: Conversion window – DXF selection	17
Fig. 18: DXF Grayscale Options to assign gray values	18
Fig. 19: use Graytable checkbox / Edit button	18
Fig. 20: Transforming GrayValues window	19
Fig. 21: Load GrayValueTable file manager	19
Fig. 22: Completed grayscale conversion	20
Fig. 23: Finishing the conversion setup	20

List of tables

Tab. 1: 8-bi	it grayscale				1
--------------	--------------	--	--	--	---

1 Introduction

Grayscale lithography is a way to expose different amounts of photoresist in a single exposure by varying the intensity of the base exposure dose. The gray value determines the amount of photoresist that will be exposed, and unlike traditional lithography practices, allows for three-dimensional structures within the photoresist. Since photoresists and substrates have many different properties, it is important to establish a workflow or process to optimize the photoresist to the desired shapes and profiles. The gray values that correspond to the desired shape under one condition may not be the same in different conditions, so having workflows for modification and optimization are important.

Traditional binary lithography processes leave the photoresist exposed or not exposed. With grayscale lithography, the photoresist can be exposed with a precise amount of energy known as a dose. Different doses in different locations mean that threedimensional structures can be created within the photoresist.

The system tools use a process called 8-bit grayscale. The design is exposed to the photoresist eight times with eight different intensities where the smallest bit is worth 0.39 % of the base dose. The next bit is worth double the bit to its right until the 8th bit, which itself is worth 50 % of the base dose.

Bit	Base dose
8 th	50 %
7 th	25 %
6 th	12.5 %
5 th	6.25 %
4 th	3.125 %
3 rd	1.5625 %
2 nd	0.78125 %
1 st	0.390625 %

The table below shows the percentage of the base dose for the bits:

Tab. 1: 8-bit grayscale

This allows 255 different gray values with 11111111 representing the full dose and a gray value of 255. The gray values determine the bits to be turned on or off, which is physically done using mirrors within the system. It is possible to achieve smooth and precise profiles using the system and some post-development processes.

1.1 About this guide

This guide describes a grayscale lithography workflow for the MLA150. To become familiar with the concept of grayscale lithography, there is an explanatory section preceding the workflow description.

The main part of the guide describes a possible workflow, which consists of the following steps:

- Design creation for grayscale applications
- Conversion of the design using the MLA150 conversion software
- Exposure process with the MLA150 control software
- Possibilities for optimization of specific shapes and profiles within the photoresist

1.2 Related documentation

Heidelberg Instruments offers several additional manuals related to the machine and its operation. If you did not get one of these or need an update, please contact Heidelberg Instruments, Germany.

Pre-installation guide

This guide contains detailed information about the system requirements. Also, this guide provides information about the sizes and weights of the components as well as other information relevant for installing the system.

Safety guide

This guide contains information about potential hazards (health, physical, and environmental) of the system. This guide provides you with the information necessary to safely move in, install, operate, and maintain the system.

System guide part I: Operator's guide

This guide contains a general description of the system. Also, this guide contains step-by-step instructions about how to use the system and how to execute standard operations.

Maintenance Guide

This guide provides information about regular maintenance tasks that must be performed on the system.

Conversion software guide

Manual for the HIMT conversion software used for data preparation and fractioning

Design creation guide

This guide contains general rules, specific restrictions, and best-practice recommendations for creating designs. Also, this guide lists the supported design formats.

Technical datasheet

This sheet contains the system specifications and summarizes the performance and other characteristics of the system. Also, this sheet lists the technical requirements of the system.

1.3 Design rules

In order to design a grayscale pattern, use your design software to make a dxf grayscale file (alternatively use a bitmap) containing layers that correspond to different gray values. The gray values should be optimized to reach the desired photoresist height at certain positions in order to match your target profile of the shape.

When making a grayscale design, each layer corresponds to a different gray value. The conversion software will take the number within the name of the layer and assign it as the gray value. These gray values can be altered using a gray value table or editing them within the conversion software (see "3.3 DXF Grayscale conversion", page 17). Below you find an example of a drawing that uses all 255 layers:



Fig. 1: Grayscale design using all 255 layers

The figure shows a grayscale design that uses every single gray value that the MLA150 is capable of producing. Each rectangle is a polyline drawn in a different layer between layer 1 and layer 255. The layer names are displayed on the right side of the figure, and the numbers inside each layer name will be the default gray values unless they are changed during the conversion. Below you find some important rules when designing a grayscale drawing.

1.4 General structure rules

NAMING

- Do not use special characters (punctuation marks, umlauts, etc.) or spaces in the design name.
- Do not use main or any combination of main as the name for a layer, cell, or any structure. It does not make any difference if main is written in lowercase or uppercase letters or a combination of both.

TEXT

Text is only supported for DXF format and ODB.

GENERAL SIZE LIMITS

Size limits can be given by hardware-specific restrictions such as the available memory space of the RAM or CPU.

AREAS

Use only polygons/closed polylines and circles to define exposure areas. Lines cannot be used to define an area; only the outlines will be exposed.

COMBINATION OF STRUCTURES

Some of the design formats that can be converted to LIC are layer-based (DXF, GDSII). Also, structures can overlap within a design. In both cases, the treatment of overlapping structures must be defined, sometimes by the user, sometimes by the software.

The following logical commands are available:

- **OR**: Results in a true merging of the structures. Any structures that lie completely within bigger structures are covered by these.
- **CUT**: Subtracts a layer from the previous layer
- **XOR**: Leads to a cutting only in the overlap region, while elsewhere both structures remain intact.

So **OR** and **XOR** are applied for overlapping structures within a layer/design. **OR** and **CUT** are used for merging layers.



Fig. 2: Combination of structures

In designs with multiple layers, different operations can be chosen for each layer combination. Operations are executed layer-by-layer from the top of the list to the bottom. There is no way of enclosing sets of operations in brackets, not even by merging merged files.

NOTE

If several layers are merged, the result of each **CUT** operation depends on the order of operations.

WIDE LINES

- Lines have to be defined with a fixed positive line width.
- Lines with width zero are ignored, as well as any line width changes within a line (tapered lines).

LINES

• Single lines without width are ignored.

POLYGONS/POLYLINES: VECTOR COORDINATES THAT DEFINE CLOSED LINES

- Areas surrounded by a polyline are filled. Some data formats allow the automatic closing of polylines. Always use this option if available. Otherwise, polylines are closed automatically.
- Do not cross polylines. Crossed polylines create ambiguities that can lead to data errors.



• Do not create double vertices. Double vertices are successive points with identical coordinates. These lead to data errors.



Fig. 3: Polygon/polyline drawing rules

1.5 Structure rules for grayscale design drawing

1.5.1 DXF/GRAYSCALE DXF DESIGN RULES

DXF is a common graphics design format, used by the well-known *AutoCAD* software. There is also other design software available that can export into DXF format, and software that can translate between different design formats (e.g., *LinkCAD*).

Regardless of the design software you use, make sure the resulting file format is 100% AutoCAD R12 compatible.

Create designs according to the software manufacturer's instructions, taking into account the general plus the following additional rules.

UNITS

Use the metric system when designing (mm as basic unit recommended).

ENTITIES

- Polyline/LW Polyline
- Circle
- Solid
- **Text:** Only one text font is provided (Courier-like typewriter font). This will replace any other font used in the design creation. The only supported text attributes are: rotated, mirrored, scaled

NOTE

Avoid placing structures in layer 0!

NOT SUPPORTED

• Entities: Line, Arc

BLOCKS:

- When inserting blocks, the same scaling has to be used for x and y.
- External blocks are not supported

DXF TRANSLATOR TOOL

Although our DXF translator supports newer DXF releases, we recommend using *Release 12*.

In addition to the standard DXF rules, the following rules apply:

- Structures on different layers may not overlap; each layer may only contain those areas that are to be exposed with the relevant gray value.
- With complex structures, file sizes might increase above the limit by available hardware. Try to keep structures as simple as possible.

1.5.2 BITMAP RULES

3D exposures require a file format where for each pixel within the design area, a depth can be defined in the form of a grayscale value. This is given in the bitmap format. The system offers 256 different intensity levels that can be addressed by the grayscale values 0 to 255 in an 8-bit grayscale format. The bitmap format also has some specific rules that have to be taken into account in addition to the general ones when setting up a design.

- Grayscale format: For grayscale exposures, use 1-bit, 4-bit, 8-bit, and 24-bit grayscale format. For designs that require only 16 or fewer gray values, also 4-bit grayscale can be used. This has the advantage that a bigger area can be covered, as the file size is smaller (see below).
- File size: The official Microsoft possible image file size in BMP is 4 GB, but the software can ignore these limitations. In the above-recommended setting for designs (8-bit grayscale), this corresponds to 4 billion pixels, or a size of e.g., 63000 × 63000 pixels. The physical size of such a design depends on the configuration of the system.

2 Basics

2.1 Standard lithography vs. grayscale lithography

Grayscale lithography is a versatile technique for the creation of three-dimensional microstructures in a photoresist. By exposing thick layers of low-contrast positive photoresists with spatially modulated light intensities, which means that the intensity is varying along the exposed area, the exposure depth can be precisely controlled. That way, intensity gradients are converted into resist topographies and allows for three-dimensional structures within the photoresist.

In contrast to grayscale lithography, standard lithography is characterized by the binary exposure of photoresist which means that some areas are exposed while others remain unexposed resulting in steep sidewalls in the developed structure. As mentioned above, grayscale lithography aims to expose gradients of the exposure dose to the photoresist resulting in a certain topography, which makes grayscale exposures more complicated compared to their binary counterpart.

The following illustration shows this difference:



Fig. 4: Standard vs. grayscale lithography

2.2 Applications for grayscale lithography

DIFFRACTIVE OPTIC ELEMENTS (DOE)

Multi-level DOEs are valuable devices commonly used for light modulation. By changing the phase profile of a laser beam, DOEs can split and shape the beam in a well-defined way, thereby enabling the efficient generation of beam arrays or complex light patterns. Fields of application range from laser material processing, medical applications, optical sensors, spectroscopy, and lithography to optical communication.



Fig. 5: Diffractive optic element

BLAZED GRATINGS

Blazed gratings are diffraction gratings with an optimized efficiency at a given wavelength and diffraction order. The optimization is achieved by precisely tuning both the angle of their sawtooth-like profile as well as the groove spacing to match the desired application. Blazed gratings are key components in several optical instruments, such as monochromators and spectrometers, which in turn are important tools for many fields of science, sensors, and communication systems.



Fig. 6: Blazed grating

FRESNEL LENSES

This compact lens design consists of several concentric circles. Originally invented to reduce the mass and volume of lenses used in lighthouses, it is still a crucial component in today's (micro-)optics and optoelectronics. Fabricated on a microscale, Fresnel

lenses have great potential for applications in, for example, mobile devices, allowing us to carry powerful camera systems in our pockets.



Fig. 7: Fresnel lens

MICROLENSES, MICROLENS ARRAYS

Like Fresnel lenses and blazed gratings, microlenses and microlens arrays are key components in modern-day micro-optics. They are used in wavefront sensors, fiber coupling, or homogenizing light sources. With grayscale lithography, the customization of microlens arrays in terms of geometrical density, shape, and radius of curvature is quickly and easily accomplished.



Fig. 8: Microlens array

Another application for grayscale lithography is the creation of diffusers and reflectors where targeted 3D micro structuring leads to controlled reflection or diffusion of light, which is applicable for example in light sources and illumination, like backlight units in LCDs. In the manufacturing of MEMS and MOEMS, lithography is used to create parts of the 3D topography which is necessary for certain parts of MEMS devices. MEMS devices are used in optical switches, optical modulators, interconnects, and a lot of others.



Fig. 9: Retro-reflector design (courtesy of karmic.ch); GS application in MEMS/MOEMS

In the field of microfluidics, for example for the creation of formed channels with specific flow properties and in textured surfaces for tailor-made surface properties such as hydrophobicity, friction, haptics, and adhesion used in touch panels and automotive applications grayscale lithography is applied.

2.3 The 3D-writing concept

All Heidelberg Instruments systems share a common concept: Light from a laser source is imaged onto the substrate by a static optical setup, while the substrate is placed on an interferometer-controlled high-precision moving stage. The individual gray values, that is, the intensity levels for the grayscale exposure, are created by modulating a laser beam with a spatial light modulator (SLM). The SLM is the centerpiece of the optical system. It addresses each position on the lateral grid, i.e. each pixel, with the correct light intensity on the substrate. The SLM creates a fast light modulation for multiple pixels over a specific, limited area (either a pixel line or a pixel array). The SLM itself is fed with design data by software which pixelates the input design and converts the design gray values to the appropriate SLM signals. The modulated laser beam is then imaged onto the substrate and exposes the resist at the current stage position with the desired intensity. Based on the design data and the stage position in a given moment, the SLM lets the beam pass, blocks it entirely, or attenuates it to one of up to 1000 intensity levels in between. The output of the SLM is not necessarily only a single pixel, because depending on the SLM used, a whole line of several hundred pixels or even a 2D array of pixels is written at a time.

The stage travels in a vertical direction underneath the standing laser beam, exposing a single stripe. After a stripe has been exposed, the stage is stepped by one stripe width along the horizontal direction and places the next stripe directly next to the previous one.



Fig. 10: Main 3D writing strategy (combination of SLM, focusing optics, and an x/y-stage)

2.4 Advice on design creation

The following section shows recommendations concerning the rule stated above.

• Set a unique name for each layer.

For conversion of the design, the layer names must be clear, so gray values can be assigned to the proper layers.

• Use polylines and make sure the shapes are closed.

If the polyline does not connect back to close itself, the conversion software will ignore it. For more information, see "1.4 General structure rules", page 5.

Check if the designs are closed polylines. The following illustration shows a comparison of open and closed polylines.



Fig. 11: Open and closed polylines

Find out, how to check this with your design software. It might be possible to check the designs, e.g., by hovering over the structures. If the whole structure is not highlighted as shown in the closed polyline, the design will not be converted or exposed.

Also, the design may not be exposed if the structures are regions instead of polylines. If a structure is a region, it will appear the same way a closed polyline appears in the drawing and needs to be checked carefully.

To make sure that all of the structures in a drawing are closed polylines, select the entire drawing and join the structures with a respective command which should be available in your design software. This should convert all the regions into polylines and close all of the open polylines. If a structure is still displayed as in the illustration above, a part of the structure is not connected to itself, so it will have to be redrawn.

• If there is an area not being exposed within a larger area that is being exposed, break the structure up into multiple parts.

For example, if a donut were being drawn, do not draw one circle inside another circle and subtract the inner region from the outer region. This creates a donut region rather than a polyline. If this structure is exploded and joined together then the entire outer circle will be exposed.

The following illustration shows how to split up a structure into multiple parts:



Fig. 12: Drawing subtracted regions with multiple structures

The conversion software would not convert the structure that is shown at the left in the illustration above correctly either because it is a region or a closed polyline with overlapping structures. However, the multiple closed polyline structures as shown at the right of the illustration above will be converted and exposed.

An easy way to draw multiple structures is to draw half and then mirror it.

• Do not include overlapping structures of different layers.

The gray values will be altered and the depth will be different than expected.

- Make yourself familiar with the following functions and commands of the design software:
 - How to select structures, how to snap to the grid, and how to draw horizontally or vertically.
 - How to copy and rotate.
 - How to make one structure into a group of structures.
 - How to join lines and polylines and close together polylines.
 - How to group again into polylines, and break them and regions into lines again.
 - How to flip the structure.
 - How to trim away extra lengths, when joining polylines that intersect, but do not meet at the same point.

3 Conversion

Unlike binary lithography using the MLA, setting up a grayscale exposure requires a few extra steps that assign each layer to a gray value. Although, it is possible to manually input each gray value to the corresponding layer, gray value tables or charts that match gray values to target photoresist thicknesses are used to speed up the optimization process.

3.1 Setting up gray value table files in advance

For assigning the gray values to the layers, it is possible to set up a file in advance that can be loaded for the conversion process. The gray values must be written underneath each other in a column and assigned to the corresponding layers, which are also written in a column. Writing down the values in one column while leaving out the layer column does also work.



Fig. 13: Values assigned to layers in a text editor

After having finished listing the gray values, save the file using the extension .gvt for the DXF grayscale format or .map for the BMP format into the corresponding folder. This file can then be loaded during the conversion setup.

3.2 Start the software

The first few actions for converting a grayscale file are like converting a normal binary file. For more information, see the *Operator's Guide*.

1. Select the correct substrate size, the laser wavelength, and double-click the **Design** column.

You see the following screen:

pours Setur. 3da	Even	rune tede		Aliona	nent Info				Prop	ness Info		Hardware	Info	-	×1	r [her	[mm]	
- Setup Job	Expo	Pole TINO		rayin	Merin area				rivy	reas area		The Grine of	e anno	6	-105.8	94957 93.	753299	
Load Substrate						- 15			100			lines.			Rument V	alars -		
on farmer lab	360.5	land	348,3108 No. \$500				_			osure Datus	-	(merc)	1.00	111	(Faller	Planut		11
	5.04	pata Sula (mm)	magin	1.00	a lumi in lum		P10 11.04	el [+],m[]	De	op turber of		Martinenat	- 04		Pasts 11	land .	411225	61
-min First Exprosent	Desig	p- kiene	Layer Prettop	1			A. 111	_	514	pe Number of		diam'r.		1.1	Contra 1	in Deserves	05	
Alignment	(Dest)	ph Topie	Convert	1			1	_	7.0	# (0-m/c) #		marks much	Indiana d	£.1.	42.04.0	Contract Page 1	1.44	11
	Own	pr. Sale (man)	Mich	1		2113	1		1.0	served Time		diment of the local dimension of the local di		1.1	and a	annen finnt	4.45	
	box	(maismr)					4	-	24	(me)		Castronica		11	COURSE TH	manufactory (percy)	1.17	61
- erri Drave Mada	1.000							1000				Carlor III		÷ 1	Contra la	and the l	1994.0	11
in hyperbia.			Convert Desig	n					1.1			Canvertion	04		Later In	invelongth (nm)	375	E.
Load Design			Convert Broken	/	Canad	Ref to d	See.	ch	Santh	Sheel Char # al	O met 100 8	Next			I	545 / 665 had		-
Oaratentitis				and the second second														
	-	-	Sane	Dete	Texe	mode	NOT X	NOT T	source formed	seurce file		Law/all in	equivation in	ny 3	08 1946	ted (D bias)	0.944	1.0
Name	Concession of the	10.000.00	GaltL/vortude_quality	2(16)2807	12123574	Quality	200	99.205	shatas	OHNC, YOU, MAR		OH 1			1 18			. 4
Searce	SreyScale Cha	and a public of	Gald_boltock_botton_haff	2062807	KEESIN AM	Quality	100		structure	DIRE, VA, MR		OK 1			8 (8			- 1
Design Type -	Chipeca	10,1,01	Gatt_Pontade_layer_fact	28/2012	2.07.00 PM	Fat	100	99,205	and an	DIRE, VO, NOR		04 1			1 10			1.5
Mark .	Quelty	office	MUA2008, feet	7962917	211127 14	Fact	ð	8,292	devolves	96,10300		04 1						
uquer / Cell	6	×	MLADOB	762017	218:55 798	Quarty	3	6.152	directure.	MLAU988		08 1					-	- 1
Magnification		1. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	application_text	796(2017	2120124 (%)	Fee.	A	5.4258	#Pacture	10000_146		ON 1						- 11
Menter .		<i>n</i>	Cast Cast Seles.	2962012	2106.06 7%	Querty		-	muchan	ONIC 10/308		08 1					-	- 5
208		#	Caretance	7522017	2111/40 194	Querty	2.76	1100.04	seucore .	Contrast Constantiations	-	08 1			5 5		-	-3
Swelled		#	Greytene General 1	1962067	LUCIDE DE PRE	Oran	1.	10.14	servicione .	Unytone Annearing		08 1					÷	- 5
(D Bas (ren)	- 4	- 0	Second Second Second	202042	114743.44	- Querry	1.	20.14	and the second	Creation of the second second			-		1.2		-	-3
lize (mm)	18.000	10.140	Second Second Second	202047	12.40.00 44	Contract of	8.408075	10.14	and the second	Condicate Channel at Indexed		00						-3
Borders in Secol	-0.008	4.892	Southers (1/48)	211/1017	11.00.05 48	(and)	1.476772	10.14	structure	Conversion in the contract of the local state of th		01 1					-	- 2
deaders bit (see)	-5.841	4.299	Smalleral SC14	315/368.7	11-01-07 AM	Cusity	8.878772	35.54	structure	(revice/arreleighted)		01 1						-2
offset Intell	-0.008	-0.841	SnudbrathChd	20,0447	11:04:00 AM	Quality	8.8790722	38.54	whether	(reyficale/Dermelatacheted)		OH 1						12
Auto Contestant			Greyfinale/hannels 26	20082	8:36:30 AM	Quality	8.879(772	10.14	wheeling	Grayficale/Dermelationhead)		OH 1			1 10			- 27
loon recently			GreyfoateCharriels, 20	6/36/2017	4 59-52 PM	Quality	10.000773	88.24	which we	Crayforle/Derroels/anieted2		CH I					.0	1
			Stepfosie/Denteh 24	6/36/2817	1.18.15.7%	Country	8.008771	80.04	decelors	Grayfaular Dermalskapleter		08 1					•	
Lot			GrayStateChannals_20	6/96/281/7	111-121-20 AM	Quality	8,0990772	80.34	Window	OvySonk/Dameislapinie@		OH I			e 14			
Bast E.M.	144	Quista	GrayScaleChannels, 22	4/26/2817	8.51,48 AM	Quality	8.996772	\$5.34	whethers	Graydonie/Dermeletiphete@		OK 1						
			Grey/Soliv/Dennels_25	4/28/2817	4.56.38 PM	Quality	9.479772	88.54	directory	Grayforie/Demoistpointed2		04 1			1 11			- 6
Comment			GreyScaleCharnels_20	4/28/2817	3.56.40 PM	Quality	8.879772	85.54	watere	Greybork/Dermitslpdetel2		ON 1			n .m			
			Greduals/Damels_19	8/29/2017	228114 PM	Quelty	8.879772	35.54	Wixture	Drayfione/Channels/spotted2		ON 1			ee			1
			Greyfiairichannels_18	6/28/2817	1128-37 AM	Quality	9.879772	28.14	Wolfure	GreyticeleOannelsigdated		OH 1			ee			. 4
			GreyScareChannels_17	6/26/2017	3 23 25 76 PM	Quelity	0.079772	35.24	devolues	Dreytione/Dameistaplated		CH I			e 10			- 41
			GreyScaleChannels_18	6/26/2907	LINEDLINE.	Quality	8.979772	35.24	shadare	GreySoleChernelsEpided		GH 1			e 10			
			GreyScaleChannels_15	8/22/28/23	4.09(32.7%	Quality	8.979772	35.14	structure	GreySoneOlametoligistated		04 1						- 12
			Greed user(Narvels 1)4	0.51.567	3 28.08 114	Coalth	1 1 1 1 1 1 1	11.14	with the	Dre-SopeCharmelatedinked		04 1						1

Fig. 14: Converting the design

- 2. After the screen loaded, click **Convert Design** to open the conversion software.
- The conversion software opens in the top left corner as shown in the following screenshot.

Depose Job Sobistiti State (sm) Noisy 1000 <) 🧃 🖩 🛯 🗯 🥑			Alignment Info	Align Cross Positions	Progress Info		Hardware I	nfo 🔉	X [mm] Y [r -105.894957 93.73 Numeric Values	mm] 53299
Subtrate See (m) Heght Pris X (m) (m) Pris X (m) (m) Design Name	- Fanose Joh	200 Name 200_9330	NO. 9330			Exposure Status		DMD	OK	7 Meter [Stars]	0
Prixt Dipoure Design Name Layer FindDip 1 1 Stripe Number of Stripe Number of	copies no	Substrate Size [mm]	Height	Pos X (µm) Y (µm)	Pos X (µm) Y (µm)	Design Number	of	Interferometer	OK	Piezo [Stens]	6553
Alignment Design Type Convert 2 2 Time (bh.mm) of — Series Design Station Mode 3 3 3 8emaning Time With read Inter (bh.mm) of Market Af Ar Pressure (bar) Af Ar Pressure (bar) Convert Convert State Convert Af Ar Pressure (bar) Convert Convert Convert Af Ar Pressure (bar) Convert	III First Exposure	Design Name	Løyer FirstExp	1	1	Stripe Number	of	Window	OK	Stane Air Pressure	OK
Series Design Size [nn] Node 3 3 4 3 5 6 <td></td> <td>Design Type</td> <td>Convert</td> <td>2</td> <td>2</td> <td>Time [hhomm]</td> <td>of</td> <td>Write Head</td> <td>Initialized</td> <td>AF Air Pressure [har]</td> <td>1.4/</td>		Design Type	Convert	2	2	Time [hhomm]	of	Write Head	Initialized	AF Air Pressure [har]	1.4/
Series Dose [m] (min] Debc 4 4 4 Conversion Conversion </td <td></td> <td>Design Size [mm]</td> <td>Mode</td> <td>3</td> <td>3</td> <td>Remaining Time</td> <td></td> <td>Chase</td> <td>OK</td> <td>Churk Venuer (bar)</td> <td>-0.6</td>		Design Size [mm]	Mode	3	3	Remaining Time		Chase	OK	Churk Venuer (bar)	-0.6
-= Draw Mode Postons Postons Values OK User OK Leser OK Leser OK	- Series	Dose [mJ/cm ²]	Defoc	4	4	[hhomm]		Comerco	OK	Chick Vectorin [sel]	57
Loser On Loser Funder (19)	Draw Mode			Positions	Positions			Later	OK	Later Brude [91]	100
Conversion OK Laser Wavelength [rm]	Inspection							Conversion	OK	Laser Wavelength [nm]	375

Fig. 15: Opening the conversion software

- 3. Click the paper icon in the top left of the conversion software and enter a job name to start converting the grayscale file. Save it.
- A window opens.
- You see the conversion software GUI.



File Table Links	
Die Tool Teh	
demo Memo	and the second
Source File	×
Add	
Internated > View Pies	
Add Dev Control Labelon VIEWER View	
	_
Plate 0	
Complete Tasks	

Fig. 16: Conversion GUI

3.3 DXF Grayscale conversion

NOTE

Gray value table files for DXF Grayscale-format prepared in advance must have the extension . gvt , so they can be loaded for conversion job setup. For more information, see "3.1 Setting up gray value table files in advance", page 15.

1. In the Source File frame, click Add.

<u>F</u> ile <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		
] 🖿 🗎 🐒 🤇		
demo		
Source File		X
<not selected=""></not>	🗾 Туре	
Add - Rem	Options <not selected=""></not>	
DXF	Meme Files	
<u>G</u> DS II		
Gerber RS-274	Detrons Labeling	
<u>D</u> XF Grayscale		
<u>B</u> MP		

Fig. 17: Conversion window – DXF selection

- 2. From the drop-down list, select **DXF Grayscale** (not DXF).
- 3. From the directory, select the correct design file.

NOTE

If the file does not show up, check if you have stored it in the correct location HIMT/Designs/DXF.

The following screenshot shows the DXF Grayscale Options panel. Here, you can assign the layers to certain gray values and set the design size.



Fig. 18: DXF Grayscale Options to assign gray values

It is possible to assign each layer to a certain gray value by hand. This is workable and makes sense if there are not many layers in a design. When having more than 100 different layers in a design, setting the gray values by hand becomes timeconsuming and labor-intensive. It is recommended to use a gray value table:

4. To use the gray value table, select the **use Graytable** checkbox at the bottom of the panel.



Fig. 19: use Graytable checkbox / Edit button

In the drop-down list next to the checkbox, you find preloaded gray value tables. If the file you are looking for is not in the drop-down list, click **Edit** next to the drop-down list. The *Transforming GrayValues* window pops up.



Fig. 20: Transforming GrayValues window

5. To load a different file, in the *Transforming GrayValues* window, click **Load**. The *Load GrayValueTable* file manager opens.

Load GrayValueTable X
Look In: Anome/mla150img/Xgu//gv// I the
File name: Open
File type: GrayValueTable (*.gvt) Cancel

Fig. 21: Load GrayValueTable file manager

- 6. Select the correct GVT file.
- 7. Once the correct GVT file is opened, go to the *Transforming GrayValues* window and click **Quit**.

NOTE

If the .gvt file does not show up, make sure that it has been saved to the correct location.

8. Check that the gray values are aligned with the correct layers and make sure that the size of the design is set to the correct value.

The following screenshot shows an example of a completed gray value conversion using the gray value table. In the design, one unit was a micron, which is why the DXF units are set to 1000 nanometers.



GRAYSC	ALE DXF Options				`
DXF	units [nm]: 1000	Arcres [degre	e]: 3 Si	cale X: 1	Scale Y: 1
	Layer Name	Gray Value	Step 🔺	Import File for	Step
19	019	19		-	
20	020	20		Layer: press s	
21	021	21			
22	022	22		Array:	1 X 1
23	023	23		[X]	
24	024	24		Step:	0 0
25	025	25		[nm]	[nm]
26	026	26			
27	027	27		X off:	0 [nm]
28	028	28		V off	0 Inmi
29	029	29		1 01.	o [mm]
30	030	30		Mirror	: no
31	031	31		E Rotatio	n: no
32	032	32	-		
🔽 us	se Graytable: demo.g	vt _	Edit	Default	Update To All
	Cancel		Create		reate Default

Fig. 22: Completed grayscale conversion

- 9. When the gray values and the size are satisfactory, click Create Default.
- Now, the design can be viewed through the viewer. From this point onwards, setting up the exposure is the same as setting up exposures for designs with binary lithography. For more information, see the *Conversion Guide*.

NOTE

Activate the **Color** checkbox in the *View Options* docking window of the *HIMT Viewer*. The layers are displayed differently colored.

GUI HIMT CONVERT	- 0	×
<u>Eile Tools Help</u>		
demo demo		
Source File		×
Pyramide_8bit_256_down.dxf 🖌 Type		
Add × Rem Options GREYSCALEDXF		
HIMT File		
Pyramide_8bit_256_down Merge Files VIEWER TCL VIEWER		
Add Rem Options Labeling view		
Plate 0		
Pyramide_8bit_256_down		
Expose Mode Select DMD WidthStandard OptionsDesign	Managemen	t
G high quality ☐ 1000 -1 Direct XOR Mode User:		_
C fast		_
x: 2037298 [nm] Exposure Design Width:	2037298	[nm]
y: 2036004 [nm] Time Design Height:	2036004	[nm]
Linner Border [mm]		
Left Border [mm] 1.020004 +/- 0 Right B	lorder [mm]	
-1.021298	1.016	
+/- 0 -1.016 +/- 0 +/-	0	
	Bias	111
X off 0.002649 [mm] F Automatic Centering		
Position Preview ZX	1º -	[nm]
Y off -0.002002 [mm] VIEWER TCL ZY	0 -	[nm]
Complete Tasks		

Fig. 23: Finishing the conversion setup

- 10. Check the design in the Viewer. If it is not centered in the drawing, it may be useful to activate the **Automatic Centering** checkbox.
- 11. To confirm and save the task, click **Complete Tasks**.

INSTRUMENTS

- 12. In the prompting window, enter in a name for the conversion process.
- The conversion process starts. The time required to complete the process depends on the complexity and size of the design.

After completion of the conversion process, the file can be loaded in the Setup panel like any other design file. For more information about how to load designs and set up exposures, see *Operators Guide*.